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Marker Text

Original site of coeducational United Brethren school founded 1850 as Hartsville Academy by public act
of Indiana General Assembly. Campus moved four blocks south, circa 1865; destroyed by fire, January
1898. Many graduates became distinguished citizens in their communities throughout the state and
nation.

Report

While the text of the Hartsville College marker is correct, much important information is
missing, making some statements misleading for a reader. This is true for the founding and naming of
the school. This report will also provide additional information about female students, the effect of the
Civil War, the split within the Brethren church which led to the closing of Hartsville College, and the
continuation of its legacy at Huntington College.

The marker text’s claim that the school was founded in 1850 by the United Brethren may be
only part of the story of the school’s founding. According to an Indiana Magazine of History article
(1915) and a Report of the State Superintendent of Public Instruction (1917), the school was established
by a vote of Haw Creek Township citizens on April 3, 1847, and work was begun on the two-story
building.! According to the History of the Church of the United Brethren in Christ (1861), the Brethren
were actively trying to establish a school in the area at this time, and through their conferences across
the Midwest, they had the means to do so.”> Former Hartsville professor, O. W. Pentzer, in his history of
Hartsville (1928), states that Haw Creek Township citizens voted in February 1848 to transfer all claims
to the building to the United Brethren Church, which would complete it and open a school.? According
to all four previously mentioned sources, this transfer was made May 26, 1849." The school was
completed and incorporated as Hartsville Academy by act of the Indiana General Assembly approved
January 12, 1850.°

While the marker is named “Hartsville College,” and the text states it was founded as “Hartsville
Academy,” there were actually two name changes. Incorporated in 1850 as “Hartsville Academy,” ®
primary sources, including newspaper articles, official annual catalogues, and a speech, show that the
name was soon changed to Hartsville University.” According to an 1891 Federal Bureau of Education
circular, Hartsville Academy changed to Hartsville University by act of the Indiana General Assembly
February 8, 1851.2 On March 5, 1883, by act of the General Assembly, the name of the school changed

again from “Hartsville University” to “Hartsville College.”®

The marker text correctly states that Hartsville College was coeducational. However, according
to Richard G. Boone’s, A History of Education in Indiana (1892), while many of Indiana’s denominational
colleges eventually admitted women, Hartsville was perhaps unique in that it was coeducational from its
inception.’ Primary sources including annual catalogues, newspapers, and speeches to students
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document that women attended Hartsville, and that at least one female professor was employed
there.! In an 1856 address, the Reverend S.J. Browne stated that many women passed exams “with
great credit and honor.”*? All of the available issues of the Annual Catalogue of the Officers and
Students of Hartsville University illustrate that men outnumbered women, but that women indeed
attended the school.® According to Pentzer, a large boarding house for women opened in 1866 and
female literary societies developed, operating under the name “Germanial.”**

The marker could benefit from a note on the effect of the Civil War on Hartsville’s operations.
According to Pentzer, the war effort slowed construction on the building for the newly moved school,
which could not be completed until 1865." Pentzer provides testimony of Hartsville students who
recalled the financial burden inflicted by the Civil War on the school. Within Pentzer’s history, a
“Reminiscence” by Dr. Arne Wilbur Clouse concurs that the “economic crisis which slowly developed as
an aftermath of the Civil War” led to the closing of Hartsville.'® In addition, the Hartsville University’s
Annual Catalogue for 1872-3 shows that no students graduated between the years 1859 and 1865."
These sources show that the situation at Hartsville reflected changes at institutions across the state as
young Hoosiers left home and school during the Civil War.

After the Civil War, ongoing financial problems and a division within the United Brethren Church
threatened the health of the school. The Annual Catalogue of Hartsville University for 1875-76
petitioned readers to donate to an endowment fund of $10,000 in order to “avoid financial difficulties,
and give greater efficiency to every department in the college.”*® An October 2, 1889 Logansport Journal
article described Hartsville as being “in a bad way financially.”*® An October 8, 1889 Journal article,
stated that the United Brethren operating in Hartsville “are waging a bitter church war among
themselves.”*® According to this article, the split originated from those who supported secret societies,
known as the “radicals”, and those who opposed the societies, the “Tights.” The “Tights” expelled those
belonging to the G.A.R., as well as the semi-secret Grange society.”* On December 10, 1891, the
Logansport Pharos reported that Professor Phillip Fix bequeathed $5,000 to Hartsville on the condition
that the school remain under control of the United Brethren and that Fix’s son be retained as a
professor.”> According to the Logansport Report, in 1893, the liberal faction gained control of the
institution and ruled that Fix’s donation be maintained, despite the change in leadership.”> One June 19,
1897, the Logansport Pharos reported that the school had been struggling to stay open and that the
United Brethren Church had split regarding secret societies.”” The article stated that the conservative
faction resigned from the college and continued under the United Brethren name to establish a new
church.

While the marker wording implies that the school functioned until the 1898 fire, the school at
Hartsville actually closed in 1897 and operations were transferred to a new school in Huntington,
Indiana. Newspaper articles indicate that the school closed in April 1897 because of the split within the
Brethren and financial difficulties.”®> Hartsville’s board of trustees voted to close the institution when
faculty resigned due to the lack of student attendance on opening day. According to a June 19, 1897
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Logansport Pharos article, the closing of Hartsville College “had been anticipated” because “for some
%6 The article states that the school did graduate one pupil that
year. According to a 1917 Report of the State Superintendent of Public Instruction, “the Board of

time the college has been struggling.

Trustees of Hartsville College in their last meeting turned over to the general Board of Education, all
books, records of proceedings, grades, etc, and recommended that the new college should confer
degrees upon the students then in the senior class...and continue the employ of the professors then in

72’ This “new college” was “a more centrally located school”?® at Huntington, Indiana. The

charge.
president of Hartsville College was then elected president of the Huntington school, which was named
Central College on September 1, 1897. Hartsville students were transferred to Huntington.”® The 1935
Huntington College Bulletin states that, “virtually Huntington is a continuation of Hartsville College.”*°
The Columbus Daily Herald reported in 1898 that the former school building was used for church
services in the period between the school’s closing and the fire.*! The 1898 Columbus Daily Herald
article stated that Hartsville College was destroyed “by the act of the incendiary who saturated the floor
1.”32 The article went on to say that the fire began at 5 a.m. and
became so furious as to alert the whole town. Hartsville lacked methods to extinguish the fire, so
citizens could only watch the fire destroy the building.*® Secondary source, Up from Stubble: A Saga of

College Park Ubee, Indiana, 1973, cites an 1898 Evening Republic article that claims the building was
»34

of Hartsville college hall with coal oi

“fired by enemies of the institution.

The final statement on the marker is correct. Research shows that “distinguished” graduates
worked throughout the state and nation. Annual catalogues cited throughout this report list alumni
with occupations such as lawyer, doctor, and minister. A Fort Wayne News article, published in 1897,
states that Hartsville College “is represented by former students in nearly every state.” An 1897
Logansport Pharos article stated that Hartsville “is well known through the country, former students
having gone into all parts of the world.”*> Logansport (1897) and Columbus (1898) articles stated that
Hartsville graduated some of the best ministers®® and finest educators in the country.”’
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